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WHITESIDES & WALKER, L.L.P.
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
212 South Tryon Street, Suite 980
Charlotte, North Carolina 28281
Telephone: (704) 376-6455
Telecopier: (704) 332-5010
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TO:

DATE: May 11, 2005

FAX #:

PHONE #:

RE: Glover Charging Documents

FROM: Helen R. Bell, Paralegal on behalf of H.M. Whitesides, Jr.
MESSAGE: Please see attached.

If you do not receive all _| LQ page(s) including this cover page, please
call the sender for assistance.

The information contained in this transmission may be attorney privileged and confidential It is
intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above. [f the reader of this message is not the
intended reciplent, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copy of this
communication may be sivictly prokibited by law. If you have received this communication in error,
please notify us immediately by telephone collect and return the original message to us at the above
address via US. Posial Service. We will reimburse you for postage. Thanks.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE "7+ 11
WESTERN DISTRICT OF NORTH CAROLINA

CHARLOTTE IHVISION
.S, Uibine o wuldRT
W. GIST. OF W.C /
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA } DOCKETNO. ., . . 3
- ) A 0DCRLY =V
) BILL OF INDICTMENT
) _ ] :
V. } Violations: 18 U.S.C. § 922(v)
) 18 U.S.C.§ 922(0)
JOHN WILLIAM GLOVER, JR. ] 26 1LS.C. § 5861
i)
— )
THE GRAND JURY CHARGES: :
NT ONE

On or about October 15, 2002, in Mecklenburg County, within the Western District of
Morth Carolina, the defendant,

JOHN WILLIAM GLOVER, JR.

did knowingly manufacture, transfer or possess a semiautomatic assault weapon, as defined in
Title 18, United States Code, Section 921{a)(3) to wit: a DSA model SA38, 308 caliber
semiautomatic rifle, serial number DS19745, in violation of Title 18, United States Code,
Sections Q‘Zgiv_} and 921(a)(30)(B).

COUNT TWO

Omn or about October 15, 2002, in Mecklenburg County, within the Western District of
Maorth Carolina, the defendant,

JOHN WILLIAM GLOVER, JR.
did knowingly manufacture, transfer or possess a semiautomatic assault weapon, as defined in
Title 18, United States Code, Section 921{a)(3) to wit: a Pacific Armament Corporation, model

FzSA 7.62, 308 caliber semiautomatic rifle, serial number PACT338, in violation of Title 18,
United States Code, Section 922(v) and 921(a}30)(B).

2 r:-\l.MI‘-‘iE i

United States Code, Section 922(v) and 921{a)(30)B).

COUNT SIX

On or about October 15, 2002, in Mecklenburg County, within the Western District of
MNorth Caroling, the defendant,

JOHN WILLIAM GLOVER, JR.
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did knowingly manufacture, transfer or possess a semiautomatic assault weapon, as defined in
Title 18, United States Code, Section 921(a)(3) to wit: an Enterprise Arms model FzSA 7.62,
.308 caliber semiautomatic rifle, serial number 132109, in violation of Title 18, United States
Code, Section 922(v) and 921(a)(30)(B).

COUNT SEVEN

On or about October 15, 2002, in Mecklenburg County, within the Western District of
North Carolina, the defendant,

JOHN WILLIAM GLOVER, JR.
did knowingly manufacture, transfer or possess a machine gun, as defined in Title 26, United
States Code, Section 5845(b), to wit an Enterprise Arms model FzSA 7.62, .308 caliber rifle,

serial number KR2048, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 922(o) and
924(a)(2).

COUNT EIGHT

On or about October 15, 2002, in Mecklenburg Cnunty, within the Western District of
North Carolina, the defendant,

JOHN WILLIAM GLOVER, JR.

did knowingly receive and possess a machine gun, as defined in Title 26, United States Code,
Section 5845(b), to wit: an Enterprise Arms model FzSA 7.62, .308 caliber rifle, serial number
KR2048, not registered to him in the National Firearms Registration and Transfer Record, in
violation of Title 26, United States Code, Sections 5841, 5861(d) and 5871.

NOTICE OF FORFEITURE

Notice is hereby given of the provisions of 18 U.S.C. §924(d) and the statutes
incorporated or referred to therein. The firearms and ammunition listed below are subject to

forfeiture in accordance with §924(d) because they were involved in, used, or intended to be used

in the violations alleged in this bill of indictment:

The following firearms, seized on or about October 15, 2002 from the defendant’s
residence at 6404 Dwightware Blvd., Charlotte, North Carolina:

1. DSA model SA58, .308 caliber semiautomatic rifle, serial number DS19745:
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2. aPacific Armament Corporation, model FzSA 7.62, .308 caliber
semiautomatic rifle, serial number PAC7338;

3. aPacific Armament Corporation, model FzSA 7.62, .308 caliber
semiautomatic rifle, serial number PAC5009;

4. a William Arms, Combat Elite model 7.62, .308 caliber semiautomatic rifle,
serial number WA15055;

5. aPacific Armament Corporation, model FzSA 7.62, 308 caliber
semiautomatic rifle, serial number PAC7363;

6. an Enterprise Arms model FzSA 7.62, .308 caliber semiautomatic rifle, serial
number IB2109;

7. an Enterprise Arms model FzSA 7.62, 308 caliber rifle, serial number
KR2048.

A TRUE BILL:

%%P EﬁSDH

ROBERT J. CONRAD, JR -
“UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
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R@BERT NYGLEASON
ASSIST}ET{UNITED STATES ATTORNEY




Mag 11 0S5 09:15a Whitesides & Walker LLP 704-332-5010

: s

s N i =

)

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR TIgE ™
WESTERN DISTRICT OF NORTH CARDLI;[% g 13 S 2\
CHARLOTTE DIVISION SN
1h 6 151"

= o7 COURT
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ) VAT OF L.
) DOCKET NO. 3:03CR69
v. ) MOTION TO VIEW GRAND JURY
) TESTIMONY
JOHN WILLIAM GLOVER, JR. )
)

NOW COMES the Defendant, by and through the undersigned attomey, respectfully
requesting the Court to allow the Defendant to view the Grand Jury testimony in the above
entitled matter and in support thereof shows unto the Court the following,

1. The Defendant was indicted by a Grand Jury in the Western District of North
Carolina on April 30, 2003.

2. On October 15, 2002, BATF agents seized seven rifles from the Defendant’s
residence, which were analyzed by BATF technicians in Washington, D.C.

3. On October 31, 2002, BATF Agent Michael J. Cooney examined rifle # 4 and
concluded it was a machine gun.

4. Based on Agent Cooney’s report, a copy of which is enclosed and incorporated by
reference hereto, the Grand Jury for the Western District of North Carolina charged this
Defendant with possession of an unregistered machine gun, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 922(o)
and 924(a)(2).

5. On May 27, 2004, Agent Cooney along with defense counsel and Defendant’s
expert Len Savage conducted a field test on rifle # 4, which Cooney declared to be an automatic
weapon.

6. Subsequent testing of the same rifle on May 27, 2004 indicated that the rifle cited
by Agent Cooney as being automatic was in fact malfunctioning and not an automatic weapon.

7. At the field test conducted on May 27, 2004, Agent Cooney stated on the
videotape, a copy of which is enclosed, that he “did not take the gun apart;” and therefore, he
could not have determined that the weapon was malfunctioning and not designed as an automatic
weapon. This fact was omitted from his report but was submitted to Agent J.J. Berger and upon
information and belief, used at the Grand Jury hearing to indict this Defendant.

8. Furthermore, Agent Cooney cited as a reason for the rifle firing automatic was
because metal had been removed from the “hammer/trigger axis locking plate.” In fact, common
knowledge in the firearm industry is that the hammer/trigger axis locking plate is known as a
sear protection plate and has no relevance whatsoever to any weapon firing in the automatic
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mode, and is only in the rifle to prevent the firing pin from popping out during field cleaning.
Therefore, the plate could not have been the basis for his “expert” opinion. Upon information
and belief, Agent Cooney’s report concluding that the hammer/trigger axis locking plate was the
reason this weapon fired automatic was also used at the Grand Jury hearing which indicted this
Defendant.

9, A review of the Grand Jury testimony by agents for the BATF, presumably J.J.
Berger, is necessary in order to prepare a defense for this Defendant in that the information given
to Agent Berger was misleading, incomplete and erroneous. Had the Grand Jury been given
correct information concerning the weapon in question, the Grand Jury may have come to a
different conclusion about the charges to be brought against this Defendant.

WHEREFORE, the Defendant, by and through the undersigned attorney, respectfully
requests the Court as follows:

1. to hold an evidentiary hearing in which the Defendant can present evidence and
argument in support of this Motion;

#.a to allow the defense access to Grand Jury testimony which the indictment against
this Defendant was discussed; and

3. for such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper, legal or
equitable.

Respectfully submitted this the / 3 day of %jﬁwf’" , 2004,
OF COUNSEL:

WHITESIDES & WALKER, L.L.P. &7 4 { /A
212 South Tryon Street, Suite 980 M. Whitesides,
Charlotte, North Carolina 28281 N.C. Bar No. 13151

(704) 376-6455 Attorney for Defendant
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE

FILED

WESTERN DISTRICT OF NORTH CAROLINA  goa 2115 13 i1 O

CHARLOTTE DIVISION LU
B g B
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ) LY OF B
)
5 ) DOCKET NO. 3:03CR69
) MOTION TO DISMISS
JOHN WILLIAM GLOVER. JR. )
)

NOW COMES the Defendant, by and through the undersigned attorey, respectfully
requesting the Court to dismiss Counts 7 and 8 of the Indictment charging the Defendant with
Count 7: possession of a machine gun and Count 8: possession of an assault rifle, and in support
thereof shows unto the Court the following.

L. The Defendant was indicted by a Grand Jury in the Western District of North
Carolina on April 30, 2003.

2 On October 15, 2002, BATF agents seized seven rifles from the Defendant’s
residence, which were analyzed by BATF technicians in Washington, D.C. BATF Agent
Michael J. Cooney conducted the examination and prepared a report, which is attached hereto as
Exhibit A.

3. On October 31, 2002, Agent Cooney examined rifle number 4 and concluded that
it was an automatic weapon.

4. Based on Agent Cooney’s report, the Grand Jury for the Western District of North
Carolina charged this Defendant with possession of an unregistered machine gun, a violation of
18 U.S.C. § 922(0) and 924(a)(2).

5 On May 27, 2004, Agent Cooney along with defense counsel and Defendant’s
expert Len Savage conducted a field test on the same rifle.

6. Agent Cooney attempted to duplicate his testing done on October 31, 2002, but
failed when he used two separate types of ammunition supplied by the BATF. On the third type
of ammunition used by Agent Cooney, he was able to make the weapon fire more than one shell
with a single pull of the trigger.

7. Upon further examination of the weapon, it was determined by experts for the
defense that the weapon was in fact malfunctioning because of a defective firing pin spring. The
performance of the rifle known as “string fire” or “slam fire” is not characteristic of an automatic
weapon.
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8. A copy of the videotape of the field test on May 27, 2004, is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein as Exhibit B. Following the field test, defense expert Len

Savage issued a written report, which is also attached and incorporated by reference herein as
Exhibit C.

9. The field testing clearly shows that the rifle is not in fact a machine gun, but was
in fact malfunctioning at the time it was tested by Agent Cooney and therefore, cannot be
classified as a fully automatic weapon violating 18 U.S.C. § 922(0) and 924(a)(2). Therefore, as
a matter of law, the charges against the Defendant in Counts 7 and 8 should be dismissed by this
court.

10.  Since the weapon was malfunctioning and not a machine gun, the Government
cannot prove beyond a reasonable doubt that the Defendant had the requisite mens rea to be
convicted under 18 U.S.C. § 922(o) and 924(a)(2).

WHEREFORE, the Defendant, by and through the undersigned attorney, respectfully
requests the Court as follows:

1z to hold an evidentiary hearing in which evidence can be presented on this Motion;
2. that the Court dismiss Counts 7 and 8 of the Indictment; and

3. for such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper, legal or
equitable.

Respectfully submitted this the ,-f da:-,f of M 2004.

OF COUNSEL:

WHITESIDES & WALKER, L.L.P.

212 South Tryon Street, Suite 980 M. W]lltESldBS Jr.
Charlotte, North Carolina 28281 " N.C. Bar No. 13151

(704) 376-6455 Attorney for Defendant
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DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY : ’ Piosiay S0
BUREAU OF ALCOHOL, TOBACCO AND FIREARMS

Firearms Technology Branch © Washington, D.C. 20226
Report of Technical Examination Phone: (202) 927-7910

DATE:  10/31/02

YOUR  753015-02-0013
Spedal Agent James J. Berger

Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms
6701 Carmel Rd., Ste 200 RE:

John W, Glover, Ir.
Charlotte, NC 28226

OUR:  2003-038-MIC

DATE EXHIEITS RECEVED: 10/18/03 TYPE OF EXAMINATION REQUESTED:
DELIVERED BY: Hand Carried Test, Bamination, Classification ..
EXHIBITS:

1. Dﬂﬂn SASE, caliber 308 semiautcmatic rifle, serial number DS519745, no magazine.
2. Racific Armament Corparation, FzSA 7.62, caliber 7.62x51mmy/ 308 semiautomatic rifle, serial
number PAC7338, no magazne. :

3. Padfic Armament Corparation, FzSA 7.62, caliber 7.62x51mm/.308 semiautomatic rifle, serial
number PACS009, no magazine. -

4. Enterprise Arms, Type 03 Metric, caliber 7.62mmy/.308 machinegun, serial number KR2048, no
magazine.,

5. Williams Arms, Combat Elite 7.62, caliber 7.62x51mm/.308 semiautomatic rifle, seral number
WA15055, no magazine.

6. Padfic Armament Corporation, FZSA 7.62, caliber 7.62x51mm/.308 semiautomatic rifle
number PACTI63, no magarine.

7. Enterprise Arms, FzSA 7.62-03A, liber 7.62x51mm/.308 semiautomatic rifle, serial number
[B2109, no magazine. )

, serial

Exhibit 1 is an FN-FAL type rifle, which incorporates a semiautomatic frame or receiver that was
manufactured by DSA Incorporated of Barrington, Hlinois, and an FN-FAL type parts kit with a three-
pasition selector. Exhibit 1 incorporates the frame or receiver of a firearm, Examination revealed that
Exhibit 1 is assembled with a standard fixed shouider stock, a pistol grip, a bayenet mount, no threaded
muzzle, and no grenade launcher. Test firing disclosed that Exhibit 1, with commerdally available Federzl
orand caliber 308 ammunition and the selector in the “fire” position, shoots one shot by a single function
of the trigger. When the selector was rotated Lo the "auto” selector position, Exhibit 1 shoots only single

shots. The first round is fired, ejected and the second round is chambered. However, there is not
sufficient farce of the hammer ta fire the second cartridge.




May 11 05 09:16a Whitesides & Walker LLP 704-332-5010 p-10

Spedal Agent James ). Berger () | k-

Exthibit Z is an FN-FAL bypeTifle, which incorporates a semiautomatic frame or receiver that was
manufactured by Imbel of Itajuba, Brazil, and an FN-FAL type parts kit with a three-position selector.
Exhibit 1 incorparates the frame or receiver of a firearm. Examination revesled that Exhibit 2 is assembled
with a standard fixed shoulder stodk, a pisiol grip, no bayonet mount, a threaded muzzie with a dummy
flash suppressor, and no grenade launcher.  Further, Exhibit 2 s in a heavy barre! configuration with
bipod. Test firing disclosed that Exhibit 2, with commerdally aveilable Federal brand caliber 308
ammunition and the selector in the “fire” pasition, shoots one shot by a single function of the trigger.
When the selector was mtated to the "auto” selector position, Exhibit 2 shoots only single shots. The first
round is fired, ejected and the second round is chambered. However, there is not sufficent force of the
hammer to fire the second cartridge. .

Exhibit 3 is an FN-FAL type rifle, which incorporates a semiautomatic frame or receiver that was
manufactured by Imbel of Itajuba, Brazil, and an FN-FAL type parts kit with a thres-pesition sefector.
Exhibit 3 incorporates the frame or receiver of a firrarm. Examination revealed that Exhibit 3 is assembled
with a standard fixed shoulder stock, a pistol grip, no bayonet mount, a flash suppressor with a threaded
muzzle, and no grenade launcher. Further, Exhibit 3 is missing the top cover and has a bipod. Test firing
disclosed that BExhibit 3, with cormmerdially available Federal brand caliber 308 ammunition and the
selector in the "fire” position, shoots one shet by 2 single funchon of the trigger. When the selector was
rotated to the "auto” selector position, Exhibit 3 shoots only single shots. The first round is fired, ejected
and the second round is chambered. Howewver, there is not sufficient force of the hammer to fire the
second cartridge. . -

Exhibit 4 is an FM-FAL btype rifle, which incorporates a semiautomatic frame ar receiver that was
manufaciured by Enterprise Arms, [ncorporated of Inwindale, California, and an FN-FAL type parts kit with
a three-position selector. Exhibit 4 incorporates the frame or receiver of a firearm. Examination revealed
that Exhibit 4 is assembled with a standard fixed shoulder stock, a pistol grip, no bayonet mount, a flash
suppressor with a threaded muzzle, and no grenade launcher, Further, Exhibit 4 has a biped,
Additionally, metal has been removed from the front section of the hammerftrigger axis locking plate
found within the trigger group housing. This medification permits additional forward travel of the hammer
which then pushes the firfing pin forward. Test firing disclosed that Exhibit 4, with commercially available
Federal brand caliber 308 ammunition and the selector in the “fire” position, shoats one shot by a sinale
function of the trigger. When the selector was rotated to the "auto” selector position, Exhibit 4 shoots
autcmatically more than one shot, without manual relcading, by a single function of the trigger. Three
rounds were lcaded and subsequently all three rounds were expelled automatically by a single pull of the
trigger.

Exhibit 5 is an FN-FAL type rifle, which incorporates a semiautomatic frame or receiver that was
manufactured by Williams Arms of Sisters, Oregon, and an FN-FAL bype parts kit with a two-position
sefector. Exhibit 5 incorporates the frame or receiver of a firearm. Examination revealed that Exhibit 5 is
assembled with a standard fixed shoulder stock, a pistol grip, 2 threaded muzzle with dummy flash
suppressor and dummy bayonet mount, and no grenade launcher, Further, Exhibit 5 is assembled in an
- early style FN-FAL configuration. Test firing disclosed that Exhibit 5, with commerdally available Federal
brand caliber .308 ammunition and the selector in the “fire” position, shoots only in the semiautomatic
mide,

Exhibit 6 Is an FN-FAL type rifle, which incorporates a semiautomatic frame or receiver that was
manufactured by Imbel of Itajuba, Brazil, and an FN-FAL type parts kit with a thres-position selector.
Exhibit 6 incorporates the frame or receiver of a firearm. Examination revealed that Exhibit 6 is assembled
with a standard fixed shoulder stock, a pistol grip, no bayonet mount, a flash suppressor with a threaded
barrel, and no grenade launcher. Further, Exhibit & has a grenade launcher sight mounted by the front
sight. Test firing disclosed that Exhibit 6, with commercially available Federl brand caliber J308
ammunition and the selector in the “fire” position, shoots one shot by a single function of the trigger.
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special Agent James 1. Berger () ™

When the selector was rotated to the “auto” position, Exhibit 6 shoots only single shots. The first round is
fired, ejected, and the second round is chambered. However, there is not suffident force of the hammer
to fire the second cartridge.

Exhibit 7 is an FN-FAL type rifle, which incorporates a semiautomatic frame or receiver that was ariginally
manufactured by Imbel of Itsjuba, Brazil for Enterprise Anms of Irwindale, California, with an FN-FAL type
parts kit and a three-position selector. Exhibit 7 mcorporates the frame or recefver of a firearm.,
Examination revealed that Exhibit 7 is assembled with a standard fixed shoulder stock, a pistol grip, a
bayonet mount, no threaded muzze and no grenade launcher. Further, Exhibit 7 has a bipod. Test firing
disdosed that Exhibit 7, with commerdally available Federal brand 308 ammunition and the selector in
the “fire” position, shoots one shot by a single funciion of the trigger. When the selector was rotated to
the “auto” position, Exhibit 7 shoots only single shots. The first round is fired, ejected and the second
round is chambered. However, there is not suffident force of the hammer to fire the second cartridge.

All test firing was conducted on October 22, 2002, at the ATF test range fadlity located in Washington,
DC.

Condusions:

Exhibits 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 are each a “firearm” as defined in Tide 18, United States Code {U.5.C.),
Chapter 44, section 921(a)(3), and were not manufactured in the State of North Carolina.

Exhibit 4 shoots automatically more than one shot without manual reloading by a single functon of the
trigger; therefore, it is a "machinegun” as defined in Title 26, U.5.C., Chapter 53, section 5845(b).

Exhibits 1, 2, 3, 5, 6 and 7 are each a semiautomatic assault weapon as defined in Title 18, U.5.C.,
Chapter 44, saction 921{a)(30}(B).
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